## Regional Oversight Committee Meeting Minutes



Wednesday, April 13, 2022 1:00pm - 3:00pm WebEx Meeting

Committee Members Present: Maria Mehranian, Cordoba/Former LA Regional Water Quality Control Board Chair Barbara Romero, City of Los Angeles Diana Tang, Long Beach Water Department Kristine Guerrero, League of Cities. Vice Chair Belinda Faustinos, Retired NGO & State Agency Executive Lauren Ahkiam, LAANE, Chair Elva Yañez, Prevention Institute Charles Trevino, Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District Carl Blum, LA County Flood Control District (non-voting member) Lawrence Yee, LA Regional Water Quality Control Board (non-voting member)

<u>Committee Members Not Present:</u> Elizabeth Crosson, Metropolitan Water District

See attached sign-in sheet for full list of attendees.

#### 1. Welcome and Introductions

Lauren Ahkiam, Chair of the Regional Oversight Committee (ROC), welcomed Committee members, called the meeting to order, and noted that the meeting was being simultaneously broadcasted in Spanish.

District Staff conducted a brief tutorial on WebEx and facilitated the roll call of Committee members. All Committee members made self-introductions and a quorum was established.

#### 2. Public Comment Period

Annelisa Moe (Heal the Bay) spoke on behalf of OurWaterLA, who submitted a letter with detailed comments regarding the Interim Guidance. Moe noted that the biennial review is still over a year out and reiterated that they would like to see concrete metrics and targets in the Interim Guidance. Moe also expressed that scoring criteria be changed in the long term. Moe expressed concern that the District has been slow to implement the educational programs (Community Engagement and Public Education Program, School Education Program, and Workforce Development Program). Moe recommended that the community outreach and engagement guidance explicitly encourage engagement with community members. Moe stated that they did not believe water supply benefits should equal disadvantaged community benefits in terms of the 110% return on investment. Moe added that OurWaterLA supports the recommendations submitted by the Accelerated Resiliency LA (ARLA) Working Group.

Laura Santos, community member, expressed satisfaction with their Watershed Coordinator's work to engage their disadvantaged community. Santos said that the Bassett High School Multi-Benefit Stormwater Capture Project application, as originally submitted, only addressed the maintenance of a stormwater collection facility and not the park in the area. The watershed coordinator is working to add community benefits to the Bassett High School Multi-Benefit Stormwater Capture Project. Particularly, they are meeting the community's desire to incorporate a more traditional solution (e.g., placita) in the application.

#### 3. Approval of Meeting Minutes from October 7, 2021

The District presented meeting minutes from the previous meeting. Motion to approve the meeting minutes by Member Charles Trevino. Member Belinda Faustinos seconded the motion. The Committee voted to approve the October 7, 2021 meeting minutes (approved, see vote tracking sheet).



#### 4. Committee Member and District Updates

Member Lawrence Yee said that the Regional Water Quality Control Board meeting would be in-person in Simi Valley on April 14. Member Yee acknowledged allegations, which have since been proven false, made against Irma Munoz at the February 10 Regional Board meeting, related to the Santa Susana fire and the Boeing Company. At the Board meeting on April 14, the Board will set the record straight. Member Yee expressed that Irma Munoz is a dedicated public servant.

District Staff provided an update, noting:

- Three Watershed Area Steering Committees (WASCs) have finalized their Fiscal Year (FY) 22-23 Stormwater Investment Plans (SIPs) to date: Santa Clara River, Lower Los Angeles River, and Lower San Gabriel River. The District expects all WASCs will approve their SIPs around the end of May.
- The Round 4 Call for Projects closes on July 31.
- The Metrics and Monitoring Study (MMS) aims to inform proactive tracking and planning through the development of metrics and monitoring protocols. The Stakeholder Advisory Committee for the MMS has met twice and will continue to engage more broadly with all interested stakeholders. As a subcomponent of this study, there is an Equity and Community Enhancement White Paper. The White Paper is led by UCLA and they have held two equity workshops to-date. The next public workshop is anticipated in late April and the dates will be announced soon.
- The District shared that they are better resourced to launch the Workforce Development, School Education, and Community Engagement and Public Education Programs.
  - The District cited ongoing conversations with both stakeholders and Counsel about early development. The District also noted it reviewed resources from existing efforts generated through the Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) Disadvantaged Community (DAC) Involvement Program and will continue to coordinate with WHAM efforts as well.
  - The District solicited a set of as-needed consultant contracts which are currently under review and could be used for additional development down the road, as needed.
  - The Education and Community Engagement Program development is underway in tandem with the new Strategic Communication Plan.
  - The District is exploring job classification pilot studies and training programs to help bring those with barriers to employment into the county workforce for Safe, Clean Water Program (SCWP)-type Stormwater projects. The District is referencing a new workforce needs assessment and workforce landscape assessment to ensure the program is adequately resourced.
  - The District is exploring future partnerships for the Schools Education Program and will continue to engage the watershed coordinators.
- The Credit Trading Program may begin holding stakeholder outreach meetings in May.
- The District hopes to share successful stories of collaboration about SCWP Projects. The District asked proponents to reach out to tell the region's story at events, and to contact the District early about partnering on groundbreaking events and/or ribbon-cutting ceremonies.
- The District will be working with the Board of Supervisors to transition to in-person or hybrid meetings in accordance with the latest findings per AB361, and is soliciting suggestions for potential, centrally-located venues for in-person meetings. A notice from the Executive Office of the Board has been sent to Committee members to report their vaccination status. Committee members who do not provide proof of vaccination will no longer be able to serve in their positions.

Member Belinda Faustinos asked if the request for as-needed consultants included community outreach and workforce training. District Staff answered that the as-needed consultant request was open to anybody

# Regional Oversight Committee Meeting Minutes



that was interested and qualified to apply and includes activities across all aspects of the SCWP. Many of the consultant teams partnered with community-based organizations (CBOs) and non-governmental organizations (NGOs) to ensure they could provide community engagement services. District Staff clarified that efforts related to the District Education programs are already in progress and they are not dependent on the execution of as-needed consultant contracts.

Chair Ahkiam expressed support for the Workforce Development program and asked District Staff how the MMS would be able to incorporate findings from the ARLA Working Group. District Staff stated that the findings of the ARLA Study have been referenced numerous times in the Interim Guidance Comment Log. District Staff said that in addition to many of comments submitted being addressed in the MMS, there is a member of the ARLA team on the Stakeholder Advisory Committee of the MMS. One of the next MMS Stakeholder Advisory Committee meeting is expected be focused on the Equity White Paper and the ARLA working group recommendations will be discussed in more depth afterwards.

#### 5. Ex Parte Communication Disclosures

Member Maria Mehranian disclosed attending a presentation about a project in MacArthur Park that is receiving funding from the SCWP Regional Program.

#### 6. Watershed Coordination Update

Chair Ahkiam acknowledged the ROC's interest in hearing more about this topic and indicated the Watershed Coordination Update may become a recurring Agenda Item.

Mike Antos (Stantec, Regional Coordination) introduced the watershed coordinators. All watershed coordinators have been reselected by their WASCs for a second year.

Clarasophia Gust (Council for Watershed Health, Upper Los Angeles River Watershed Coordinator) and Alfredo Camacho (Day One, Upper San Gabriel River Watershed Coordinator) shared a presentation of activities undertaken by the watershed coordinators work over the past year. The presentation will be available on the SCWP website.

The overview included information regarding the roles of the watershed coordinators:

- Support: Supporting WASCs by giving the WASC tools and resources.
- Connect: Providing resources for the community.
- Engage: Highlighting coordinator collaboration.
- Educate: Focusing on on-the-ground events to reach out and educate the community.

The toolkit which was distributed to water leaders in the CBO cohort is available online at <u>www.redesign.la</u>. Member Faustinos observed that the toolkit may inform decision-making related to existing projects.

The ROC discussed the role of Watershed Coordinators in ensuring the achievement of SCWP goals through facilitation of collaboration between organizations, agencies, and stakeholders to maximize the benefits achieved by projects. Member Blum suggested adding an item to the next meeting's agenda to discuss how the ROC is directing the program towards its goals and how the Watershed Coordinators can facilitate the pursuit of any goals developed by the WASCs.

The ROC discussed how stakeholders are educated about water quality. Typically, Watershed Coordinators discuss water quality in terms of "pollution," and emphasize how community wants to align with the goals of the SCWP. Detailed watershed models or the use of terms such as "TMDL" and "MS4" aren't always the best way to engage community members.

Member Barbara Romero asked to hear more about the challenges and lessons learned from the watershed coordinators in future presentations.



#### 7. Public Comment Period

Deborah Bloome (ARLA) clarified that the comments attributed to ARLA in the Interim Guidance Comment Log were actually submitted by the working group convened by ARLA. Bloome emphasized that the distinction signals participation of multiple stakeholder voices between municipalities and NGOs.

Dave Pederson, on behalf of the North Santa Monica Bay WASC, summarized the comment letter submitted by the WASC. The letter can be found in the Interim Guidance Comment Log Lines 18, 19, and 20. Pederson stated that only two projects have ever achieved a threshold score of 60 in three years. This can frequently be attributed to the difficulty in achieving the Water Supply points with the current Scoring Criteria. The North Santa Monica Bay Watershed does not overlay a usable groundwater basin, so conventional stormwater capture strategies are not effective in the generating water supply. Pederson asked that the Scoring Criteria acknowledge this issue. Pederson noted that if fewer than 25 acre-feet (AF) of water is captured or if the \$2,500 life cycle cost threshold is exceeded, no points are awarded. This is not an accurate reflection of whether a project is worthwhile or not in the North Santa Monica Bay Watershed Area. Pederson asked the ROC to consider the recommendations in their letter.

#### 8. Revisitation of ROC Chairs

Chair Ahkiam acknowledged the departure of former Co-Chair Shelley Luce and her desire to give the ROC another opportunity to revisit the structure. The operating guidelines call for the Chair and Vice Chair positions be revisited annually, which had just occurred shortly before Chair Luce's departure. District Staff noted that they did not receive any comments in advance regarding making changes to the ROC. Chair Ahkiam invited comments or any nominations for the positions.

ROC Members expressed support for the current leadership. Member Romero made a motion to continue with Lauren Ahkiam as Chair and Kristine Guerrero as Vice Chair. The motion was seconded by Member Mehranian. The vote was approved (see vote-tracking sheet).

#### 9. Discussion of 2022 Interim Guidance and Public Review Comments

District Staff displayed the Interim Guidance Public Review Period Comment Log. District Staff stated that the Interim Guidance was an initiative created by the adaptive management strategy of the program and reminded Committee members of the role of the ROC in ensuring the SCWP is meeting its goals.

Member Faustinos expressed appreciation for receiving the comment log ahead of time and would like to hear from District Staff why concrete metrics have not been added to guidance thus far, noting the difficulty to withhold personal judgement without specific metrics to administer. District Staff answered that the MMS is underway, and that District Staff did not feel they were in a position to incorporate concrete metrics without the results of that study. District Staff noted that the MMS is a first step in defining these metrics and the Interim Guidance is intended to add value for this upcoming round and also ensure common terminology is being utilized across the program. Member Faustinos asked if the metrics would be in place for the Round 4 projects. District Staff noted that the MMS results are expected to be available around the end of 2023, so incorporating results by the July 2023 call for projects deadline is unlikely. District Staff stated they hope the results will be ready for use at the biennial review, held at the end of 2023. District Staff noted that approximately 25% of comments received refer to scoring changes. District Staff is committed to making iterative improvements, as applicable.

Member Faustinos recommended that the District clarify what is being asked of project proponents in funding applications and request project applicants to provide supporting documentation that can be verified. District Staff stated that the Interim Guidance provide standard terms and approaches, and other refinements to improve program functionality and effectiveness, though the SCWP does not have black and white scoring criteria for some of the complex and nuanced topics. District Staff shared that changes are underway as a result of suggestions made in the comment log, which will also be accompanied by other changes (to the application module, etc) for which the District Staff has direct jurisdiction.



Member Mehranian asked if a model or tool will be made available to show the effectiveness of SCWP projects on water quality. District Staff answered that this is in the works.

Member Mehranian asked if changing guidelines for future rounds could negatively impact concept reports and feasibility studies already in progress. District Staff noted that changing guidance could have an impact and they wanted to mitigate this as much as possible by giving project proponents notice of changed guidance ahead of time.

Chair Ahkiam brought up the ARLA Group's recommendation to provide clarity on what constitutes a DAC benefit. Chair Ahkiam stated that the ARLA Working Group did some work on defining what constitutes a DAC benefit. Chair Ahkiam asked how these recommendations would be incorporated, noting that the Equity White Paper and the MMS were also in progress. District Staff stated that the next steps for the Interim Guidance Comment Log is to classify which tiers of oversight/authority each recommendation falls under to see how these recommendations could be pursued. For example, changes may be implemented by District Staff if they fall under a lower tier; however, some changes may need to be considered at the highest levels of oversight: the Board of Supervisors or the voters. Member Faustinos asked for clarity on what the ROC has oversight over, so that recommendations can be directed to the correct parties. The District affirmed the ROC's role of evaluating whether SCWP goals are being met.

Member Romero reminded the ROC of a prior decision that was made, regarding whether funding should be suspended until more concrete guidance could be provided. The ROC decided it would be more important to begin funding projects. Member Romero reiterated that the Program is still in its early stages of implementation. District Staff confirmed the guidance will continue to be referred to as "Interim" to align with the idea of adaptive management.

Member Elva Yañez appreciated the genuine considerations and thorough process, and encouraged the ROC to take time to thoughtfully consider improvements to the program since it is one of the first equity-minded stormwater measures in the country.

#### 10. Items for Next Agenda

The date of the next ROC meeting date is to be determined. See the SCWP website for meeting details, including timing and length.

WASCs should vote on their respective SIPs ASAP so that the ROC may evaluate them. Chair Ahkiam noted the understanding that the District would like to move towards a standard annual timeline that would facilitate Board approval in the summer instead of the fall, which will require earlier approval by WASCs in the future. An earlier timeline not only distributes money sooner but also would maximize time for approved feasibility studies funded by the Technical Resources Program – or projects that don't receive funds in the current round – to potentially be developed in time for the next call for projects.

Items for the next agenda include:

• Review and approval of FY 22-23 Stormwater Investment Plans

Items on the radar for potential future discussion include:

- Update on SCWP education programs
- Presentation GIS tools (UC Irvine Flood Bridge project)
- Update on the Equity White Paper from the MMS
- Update on Scientific Studies approved to date
- Update on Watershed Coordinators' challenges and best practices
- Discussion on if the ROC is adequately guiding the SCWP in achieving its goals

#### 11. Meeting Adjourned



Chair Ahkiam thanked ROC members and the public and adjourned the meeting.

Re	Regional Oversight Committee - April 13th, 2022					
	Quorum Pre	sent				
Member Type	Member	Present?	Approval of October 7, 2021 meeting minutes	Elect Lauren Ahkiam as Chair and Kristine Guerrero as Vice-Chair		
Voting Member	Maria Mehranian	Х	Y	Y		
Voting Member	Barbara Romero	Х	Y	Y		
Voting Member	Diana Tang	Х	Y	Y		
Voting Member	Kristine Guerrero	Х	Y	Y		
Voting Member	Belinda Faustinos	Х	Y	Y		
Voting Member	Elizabeth Crosson					
Voting Member	Lauren Ahkiam	Х	Y	Y		
Voting Member	Elva Yanez	Х	Y	Y		
Voting Member	Charles Trevino	Х	Y	Y		
Non-Voting Member	Carl Blum	Х				
Non-Voting Member	Lawrence Yee	Х				
Total Non-Vacant Seats	9	Yay (Y)	8	8		
Total Voting Members Present	8	Nay (N)	0	0		
		Abstain (A)	0	0		
		Total	8	8		
			Approved	Approved		

Attendees Regional Oversight Committee Meeting - April 13, 2022

Alex Paxton	Justin Jones	
Alfredo Camacho (Day One)	Justin Jones - LACFCD	
Alfredo Magallanes	Kelsey Jessup	
Amanda Begley	Kevin Kim (LACFCD)	
Amanda Zeidner	Kirk Allen	
Andrew Kim	Kristine Guerrero	
Annelisa Moe (HtB)	Larry Tran	
Barbara Romero	larry yee	
Belen Bernal	Laura Santos	
Belinda Faustinos	Lauren Ahkiam	
Brett Perry	Lauro Alvarado	
Brianne Logasa	Lidia Rivera	
Bridget Childs	Lynda Bybee	
Carl Blum	Maggie Gardner	
Carlos Moran	maria mehranian	
Carolina Hernandez	Marissa Caringella	
Charles Trevino	Mark Hall	
Christine McLeod	Matt Frary (LACFCD)	
Michael Scaduto	Melanie Morita (LACFCD)	
CJ Caluag	Melina Watts	
Clarasophia Gust Gust	Melissa Turcotte	
Conor Mossavi	Michael Gagan	
Drew Ready	Michelle Staffield	
Vik Bapna (CWE)	Michelle Struthers	
Danielle Chupa	Nancy Shrodes	
Daritza Gonzalez	Raina Dwivedi	
David Pedersen	Rochelle Wilson	
Dee Corhiran	Ryan Jackson	
Devon Provo	Sarai Bhaga	
Diana Tang	Tara Dales (SGA Marketing)	
Donna Tran	sheila brice	
Drew Ready	Sonali Abraham	
elva yanez	Sophie Freeman	
Eric Bonilla	Stephanie Tong	
Gordon Haines	Susie Santilena	
Grace Kast	Uriel Cobian - LACFCD	
Gustavo Orozco	wendy Dinh	
K. Pease (HtB)		
Mikaela Randolph (HtB)		
Ida Meisami-Fard		
Jason Casanova		
Jeannette Hernandez		
Jesenya M		
Joe Venzon		
johanna chang		
Joyce Amaro		
	-	



# **Public Comment Form**

Name:*	Annelisa Moe	Organization*: OurWaterLA
Email*:	amoe@healthebay.org	Phone*: <u>707-540-4303</u>
Meeting:	Regional Oversight Committee	Date: <u>4/13/2022</u>

LA County Public Works may contact me for clarification about my comments
 \*Per Brown Act, completing this information is optional. At a minimum, please include an identifier so that you may be called upon to speak.

Phone participants and the public are encouraged to submit public comments (or a request to make a public comment) to <u>SafeCleanWaterLA@dpw.lacounty.gov</u>. All public comments will become part of the official record.

Please complete this form and email to <u>SafeCleanWaterLA@dpw.lacounty.gov</u> by at least 5:00pm the day prior to the meeting with the following subject line: "Public Comment: [Watershed Area] [Meeting Date]" (ex. "Public Comment: USGR 4/8/20").

## Comments

When it comes to metrics and targets within all of the proposed guidance documents, the Interim Guidance makes some great recommendations, but they come without teeth. We would like to see targets and metrics set, and scoring criteria adjusted, rather than simply providing a series of recommendations. In our public comment letter, we endorsed the recommendations made by the Accelerate Resilience LA Working Group (made up of municipal voices and NGO voices) which came together to identify how to maximize the benefits of the Safe, Clean Water Program, and which speaks a lot to the issues of metrics and targets.

OurWaterLA has long been a big proponent of community engagement. However, three years in, we have some concerns about the slow implementation of education programs including community outreach and engagement practices, the K-12 education program, and workforce development. We request an update on the status of these programs. Additionally, we would like to see a needs assessment to help build these programs. Specifically for community outreach and engagement, we must ensure that project proponents engage in direct community engagement and do not solely rely on engaging with elected officials who may not always represent interests of community members.

Concerning water supply, until we see more changes to the scoring criteria, OWLA remains conservative in our approach to disadvantaged community benefits. We maintain that water supply benefits do not equal disadvantaged community benefits in terms of the 110% return on investment.

I will also reiterate the need to differentiate between vegetated and non-vegetated nature-based solutions. Nature-based solutions and nature mimicking solutions should not be conflated. They should have separate definitions and be separated in the program and the guidance as they do not utilize the same processes nor do they provide the same suite of benefits.

From: Devon Provo <<u>dprovo@acceleratela.org</u>> Sent: Tuesday, April 12, 2022 11:57 AM To: Kirk Allen <<u>KALLEN@dpw.lacounty.gov</u>> Cc: Deborah Bloome <<u>dbloome@accelerateresiliencela.org</u>>; Jennifer Bravo <<u>jbravo@accelerateresiliencela.org</u>> Subject: ARLA Working Group Comment Letter on Interim Guidance

### CAUTION: External Email. Proceed Responsibly.

Hi Kirk,

We were just reviewing the <u>Interim Guidance Comment Log</u> in advance of the ROC meeting tomorrow, and wanted to reach out to clarify that the comments that are attributed to ARLA in the log are actually comments that were submitted by the *Working Group* (which was convened by ARLA). However, they do not necessarily represent the views of ARLA the organization. We would like to make that distinction clear to ensure compliance with our organizational lobbying requirements and to ensure ROC members are aware of the multiple stakeholder voices represented by the Working Group. Is it possible to make this clarification?

Thanks, Devon

Devon Provo Policy Manager Accelerate Resilience L.A. (ARLA) DProvo@AccelerateLA.org https://acceleratela.org/ (310) 421-8401

## Safe, Clean Water Program

## 2/16-3/27 Public Review Period: 2022 Interim Guidance

Comment Log

	Comment				
#	Date	Ву	Affiliation	Section	Comment
1	3/2/2022		ARLA	Strengthening Community Engagement and Support	The Working Group requests additional information regarding the District's development of the Public Education Programs called for in the SCWP Ordinance and funded through the SCWP. Given the Working Group's findings regarding the importance of identifying community needs and benefits, and the fact that funding for these programs is accumulating, the Working Group requests that the District provide a status update in 2022 on the intention to create and launch Public Education Programs with opportunity for public comment.
					an efficient way to meet Program Goals and deliver results to voters. While the Working Group is pleased to see the Guidance around project-specific community engagement, it is just one of three essential parts to SCWP community engagement (see Figure 1 below, outlining the trio of community engagement elements: (1) SCWP General Community Engagement, (2) Needs Assessments, and (3) Project-Specific Community Engagement.)
					Moreover, although Watershed Coordinators are currently tasked with conducting some community engagement, they alone do not have the capacity to sufficiently engage community members in SCWP implementation. Additional clarity from the District is needed to understand when and how the remaining two community engagement elements—SCWP General Community Engagement and Needs Assessments—will be developed. The Working Group therefore recommends that the District design, create, and implement a robust Community Engagement Program using a portion of the 20 percent of District Program
2	3/2/2022		ARLA	Strengthening	funds allocated to Public Education Programs (see Working Group Recommendation 5). Needs assessments will help identify the unique community strengths and needs within each
2	3/2/2022			Community Engagement and Support	watershed to inform SCWP investments, including informing the programming of Nature-Based Solutions and implementation of Disadvantaged Community Policies described later in the Guidance. The Working Group is pleased to see that page 10 of the Guidance calls for "verification that the benefits provided [for a proposed project] directly address identified community needs." However, more guidance is needed to clarify how project proponents, WASCs, and the Scoring Committee should verify that benefits provided address identified community needs. The Working Group recommends that the District develop and launch a Needs Assessment Initiative to document community strengths, needs, and priorities of each Watershed Area with strategic direction and support from the Watershed Coordinators and municipalities (see Working Group Recommendation 6). Completed needs assessments could then be used to verify if proposed projects include components that address needs identified in the needs assessment.
3	3/2/2022		ARLA	Strengthening Community Engagement and Support	The Working Group is pleased to see that Table 2 (page 8) in the Guidance describes "good," "better," and "best" practices for conducting outreach and engagement. Similarly, we view the suggestion that "SCWP projects should ultimately target the 'best' category of all project phases" as a positive step forward. However, without tying scoring criteria to these levels of best practice, project proponents will not have any additional incentive to move deeper into community engagement (i.e., from "good" to "best") when developing their projects. Therefore, the Working Group recommends that the District adjust scoring for community engagement in order to reward projects that meet higher standards for engagement (see Working Group Recommendation 8).
4	3/2/2022		ARLA	Strengthening Community Engagement and Support	If changing the scoring tied to community engagement is beyond the scope of this Guidance, the Working Group recommends that the District provide additional clarification on the criteria and documentation needed to meet the three tiers of "good, better, best" denoted in Table 2 of its Guidance. While the Working Group appreciates the variety of best practices included in the Guidance, there is so much information that streamlining it into criteria might aid project proponents. The Working Group recommends including three of the four criteria from the aforementioned Recommendation 8 in this interim Guidance. (refer to comment letter)

Summary	PDF
Design, create, and implement a robust Community Engagement Program using a portion of the 20 percent of District Program funds allocated to Public Education Programs	link
Develop and launch a Needs Assessment Initiative to document community strengths, needs, and priorities of each Watershed Area with strategic direction and support from the Watershed Coordinators and municipalities	<u>link</u>
Adjust scoring for community engagement in order to reward projects that meet higher standards for engagement	<u>link</u>
Provide additional clarification on the criteria and documentation needed to meet the three tiers of "good, better, best" denoted in Table 2 of its Guidance	link

#	Date	Ву	Affiliation	Section	Comment	S
5	3/2/2022		ARLA	Strengthening Community Engagement and Support	Additionally, while the Working Group is pleased to see the Guidance call for much of the documentation noted above, it does not require this documentation. In line with the aforementioned Recommendation 8, the Working Group recommends that documentation requested to support community engagement is necessary and required as opposed to optional. Page 10 in the Guidance states documentation "may include" a subset of items listed above, but it does not require documentation. This language is still vague, and therefore will likely continue to cause some confusion among project proponents, as well as for the Scoring Committee, Watershed Area Steering Committee, and Regional Oversight Committee.	ſ
6	3/2/2022		ARLA	Strengthening Community Engagement and Support	The Working Group applauds the District for setting a minimum expectation of community engagement prior to submitting an application (page 6 of the Guidance). However, the Guidance specifies that project proponents should reach a minimum level of "Inform" or "Consult" with key stakeholders before application submission. The Working Group believes that "Inform" does not constitute an adequate minimum level of engagement, because such activities represent one-way communication (e.g., Fact sheets, Open Houses, Presentations, Billboards, Videos) instead of two-way communication where the community has an opportunity to provide input (e.g., Public Comment, Focus Groups, Community Forums, Surveys). Therefore, the Working Group recommends that project proponents be expected to complete initial engagement activities to a minimum level of "Consult" or higher (See Figure 3 below and Recommendation 8).	F
7	3/2/2022		ARLA	Strengthening Community Engagement and Support	Project proponents need resources to support this minimum level of engagement. The Guidance for engagement during the project planning phase suggests that project proponents should secure funding for community engagement from sources other than the Regional Program funds (page 6 of the Guidance). However, Section 16.05A.2.a of the Ordinance stipulates that infrastructure development tasks including design and planning are eligible expenditures under the Regional Program. Therefore, project proponents should be allowed to request funding for engagement activities conducted during the planning phase.	F r F
8	3/2/2022		ARLA	Water Supply Guidance	The Working Group commends the District for clarifying that project proponents should analyze the relationship between upstream and downstream projects (page 18 of the Guidance). However, without technical tools to support this analysis, it is unlikely that project proponents' good faith efforts will generate meaningful findings. Accounting for upstream or downstream projects within the same drainage area is necessary to ensure projects are "right-sized," coordinated, and cost-effective. The Working Group identified several adjustments that could be made to the SCWP Spatial Data Library and SCWP Map in order to better account for the nested relationship between upstream and downstream projects (see Working Group Recommendation 16). Thus, the Working Group recommends that the District prioritize the development of these technical tools as soon as possible in order to support a more robust analysis of project interactions.	F r s
9	3/2/2022		ARLA	Water Supply Guidance	The Working Group believes that Guidance on Water Supply benefits is overly restrictive for projects located over shallow, currently unmanaged aquifers, or projects that could meet downstream environmental/biological water needs. The Working Group agreed that additional flexibility is needed to maximize Water Supply benefits across all Watershed Areas. Infiltrating stormwater into a shallow groundwater aquifer should be counted as a Water Supply Benefit, given that industrial/process wells may extract from a low, unconfined aquifer. Also, the Working Group recommends that Water Supply benefits include consideration of the sustenance of inland and coastal ecosystems throughout the County, and how runoff may help sustain or augment such needs. Therefore, the Working Group recommends that the District update the Guidance to interpret shallow groundwater and environmental water as a Water Supply Benefit, even as additional research is completed on these topics (see Working Group Recommendation 3).	l

Summary	PDF
Documentation requested to support community engagement is necessary and required as opposed to optional.	<u>link</u>
Project proponents should be expected to complete initial engagement activities to a minimum level of "Consult" or higher	link
Project proponents should be allowed to request funding for engagement activities conducted during the planning phase	<u>link</u>
Prioritize the development of technical tools to analyze the relationship between upstream and downstream projects as soon as possible	<u>link</u>
Update the Guidance to interpret shallow groundwater and environmental water as a Water Supply Benefit	<u>link</u>

#	Date	Ву	Affiliation	Section	Comment
10	3/2/2022		ARLA		While the Guidance provides some clarity to distinguish genuine Nature-Based Solutions from surface improvements, it does not propose any clarifications to the existing definition. We recommend that separate definitions are needed to further differentiate Nature-Based Solutions from Nature-Mimicking Solutions in order to meaningfully quantify the benefits of each project type and award points accurately (see Working Group Recommendation 2). This distinction will provide more precise direction for project proponents, WASCs, and the Scoring Committee to ensure that Nature-Based Solutions (e.g., projects that provide Water Quality, Water Supply, and Community Investment Benefits as part of the treatment process) are incentivized.
11	3/2/2022		ARLA	Programming of Nature Based Solutions	The Guidance also maintains the existing scoring criteria for Nature-Based Solutions, which conflates project types and outcomes (benefits), which can result in double counting and other issues. The Working Group recommends that points for Nature-Based Solutions and Community Investment Benefits be consolidated (25 points overall) so that projects can be assessed based on how well they yield desired outcomes and benefits instead of the project type alone (see Working Group Recommendation 21).
12	3/2/2022		ARLA		Guidance related to the WASC evaluation of Stormwater Investment Plans partially aligns with the Working Group's recommendation to prioritize Nature-Based Solutions (Recommendation 9). Nevertheless, the Working Group believes that stronger tools and processes need to be developed to support these decisions. For example, page 31 of the Guidance states that, "Where possible, WASC members should consider known needs of the Watershed Area and/or the community in which the Project is located when evaluating the benefits that it is providing." The Working Group believes that understanding the needs of the Watershed Area and the community in which a project is located is foundational to the implementation of the Regional Program because funds cannot be allocated wisely when needs are unknown. Considering these needs only "where possible" is insufficient. As such, the Working Group recommends that WASCs set Watershed Area targets based on data about what is technically possible in the Watershed, and what the community needs and wants, to inform investment decisions (see Working Group Recommendation 15). Targets should indicate the type (Nature-Based Solutions, Nature-Mimicking Solutions, and Gray Infrastructure), size (regional or distributed), and general locations of projects that are a priority for the Watershed Area, and WASCS should set targets that maximize the use of Nature-Based Solutions and drive localized Community Investment Benefits to Disadvantaged Community Benefits. This approach will provide a clearer process and data by which WASC members can evaluate the extent to which Projects programmed in Stormwater Investment Plans meet Watershed Area needs.
13	3/2/2022		ARLA		The Guidance states that the interpretation of what constitutes a "direct benefit" should be determined by WASCs on a project-by-project basis but does not provide a clear process for assessing the benefits—including Disadvantaged Community Benefits—provided by each project. This approach does little to provide clarity for project proponents and WASC members, nor does it help WASCs assess how to meet or exceed the minimum allocation for Disadvantaged Community Benefits be measured based on the sphere of influence for each project (see Working Group Recommendation 12). The Working Group identified the sphere of influence for different types of benefits to account for the distinct spatial scales by which Water Quality, Water Supply, and Community Investment Benefits accrue to certain beneficiaries.
14	3/2/2022		ARLA	the Regional Program	Furthermore, the Working Group believes there are better alternatives for calculating the 110 percent investment than using the total amount of funding provided for projects judged to be providing benefits to members of a Disadvantaged Community. This all-or-nothing approach fails to account for the varying magnitude of benefits accrued to Disadvantaged Communities. The Working Group recommends that Disadvantaged Community Benefits be calculated proportional to population served and the magnitude of the benefits, rather than by investment (see Working Group Recommendation 13). Counting only the portion of the project that benefits Disadvantaged Communities towards the 110 percent investment calculation will ensure a greater number of projects that benefit Disadvantaged Communities receive funding. This methodology should be evaluated through the District-led Metrics and Monitoring Study and adopted through updated guidance if proven to be an effective approach.

Summary	PDF
Separate definitions are needed to further differentiate Nature- Based Solutions from Nature-Mimicking Solutions	<u>link</u>
Points for Nature-Based Solutions and Community Investment Benefits be consolidated (25 points overall)	<u>link</u>
WASCs set Watershed Area targets based on data about what is technically possible in the Watershed, and what the community needs and wants, to inform investment decisions	link
Direct benefits for DACs be measured based on the sphere of influence for each project	<u>link</u>
Disadvantaged Community Benefits be calculated proportional to population served and the magnitude of the benefits, rather than by investment	<u>link</u>

#	Date	Ву	Affiliation	Section	Comment	4
" 15	3/2/2022		ARLA	-	In addition, the Working Group recommends that scoring criteria be adjusted to award points to projects that provide Disadvantaged Community Benefits. This will incentivize project proponents to develop a pipeline of projects benefiting Disadvantaged Communities.	t
16	3/26/2022	Sonali Abraham, D. Env.	Pacific Institute	Nature Based Solutions	Provide a narrow definition of NBS and its components. The current Guidelines define NBS to include "Projects that mimic natural processes, such as green streets, spreading grounds and planted areas with water storage capacity." By expanding the definition of NBS to include the term "mimic" allows for nearly all projects to claim NBS points. We recommend redefining NBS to focus on natural systems and the resulting benefits provided by incorporating nature into project designs. In addition, we recommend providing additional quantitative and qualitative metrics for evaluating the NBS components of projects. Recommendations on the SCWP provided by Accelerate Resilience Los Angeles (ARLA) point to a similar issue under Working Group Recommendation #2, saying that "This broad definition leaves much open to interpretation about what classifies as a Nature-Based Solution and has created confusion for project proponents and WASCs."	F
17	3/26/2022	Sonali Abraham, D. Env.	Pacific Institute		Adopt recommendations provided by ARLA. ARLA developed a comprehensive set of recommendations in consensus with municipality and NGO partners (Attachment A). Pacific Institute was an advisor for this effort and strongly encourage the County to adopt these recommendations as part of the next iteration of the SCWP. In particular, we see recommendation #2 in Attachment A around programming of NBS to be critically important. This includes (a) Refine Nature-Based Solutions/Nature-Mimicking Definition, (b) Test Alternative Scoring Criteria and (c) Prioritize Nature-Based Solutions and Set Watershed Area Targets.	
18	3/25/2022	David W. Pedersen, P.E.	NSMB WASC	Overall	Closer coordination with the WASCs is recommended for the development of future guidance documents to ensure that they effectively address the most important challenges.	f
	3/25/2022	David W. Pedersen, P.E.	NSMB WASC	Water Supply Guidance	We recommend that the 2022 Draft Interim Guidance document be amended to acknowledge and address, to the extent possible, the challenges faced by project proponents in the NSMB with respect to scoring for the Water Supply Benefit area. Specifically, the WASC recommends that water supply benefit points be awarded to projects with a higher per acre-foot cost, recognizing the difficulty of delivering projects at less than the wholesale cost of imported water. The cost of producing a new source of drinking water supply via potable reuse may provide a more realistic comparison. This change would also acknowledge that the cost per acre-foot of treating polluted runoff and stormwater will be higher for smaller, distributed projects in the Santa Monica Mountains. Additionally, water supply benefit points should be provided for smaller volumes of water that will be captured ir areas with sparse, distributed development and relatively smaller tributary waterbodies. Finally, projects that contribute to environmental flows and support enhanced ecosystem function should receive water supply points particularly when offsetting the need for existing water supplies for these purposes.	
20	3/25/2022	David W. Pedersen, P.E.	NSMB WASC	Water Supply Guidance	Attachment B provides a strawman proposal of potential changes to the scoring criteria to address the above- described comments.	0,
	3/25/2022	Michael Scaduto, P.E., ENV. SP	LASAN	Overall	We recommend the District implement the additional guidance guidelines as part of the Round 5 Call for Projects due July 31, 2023. This will ensure adequate time for the District to review public comments and present the fina Interim Guidance at upcoming publicly noticed Scoring Committee, Watershed Area Steering Committee, and Regional Oversight Committee meetings.	
22	3/25/2022	Michael Scaduto, P.E., ENV. SP	LASAN	Engagement and Support	For instance, the District must provide clarification regarding points for outreach (page 8, Table 2 of the Interim Guidance) in the Scoring Criteria for the Good, Better, and Best categories to include associated points for each level, and the allowance for partial points. Providing this detail in the Interim Guidance would allow project proponents to estimate resource needs and level of effort for outreach during the development of feasibility studies and have a clear understanding of how these efforts will affect the score of their Regional Program application.	

Summary	PDF
Scoring criteria should be adjusted to award points to projects that provide Disadvantaged Community Benefits.	<u>link</u>
Refine definition of NBS	link
Adopt ARLA recommendations, focus on NBS components	link
Closer coordination with the WASCs for the development of future guidance documents	<u>link</u>
Amend guidance and scoring criteria for Water Supply for higher cost per acre-ft cost, smaller volumes of water in sparsely developed areas, and environmental flows.	link
Specific scoring edits for Water Supply for consideration	<u>link</u>
Adjust when guidance goes into effect for Feasibility studies	<u>link</u>
Amend scoring for community engagement.	<u>link</u>

#	Date	Ву	Affiliation	Section	Comment	Summary	PDF
23	3/25/2022	Michael Scaduto, P.E., ENV. SP	LASAN	Nature Based Solutions (also relevant for CIB)	We also recommend the District adopt changes to the scoring for Community Investment Benefits (CIB) to encourage more projects that benefit schools. Currently, the scoring criteria is interpreted by the Scoring Committee as only giving points for "Greening of schools" to projects located on school grounds. This scoring is too exclusive, as it incentivizes and benefits projects proposed only by schools and school districts. Los Angeles Unified School District (LAUSD), for instance, holds thousands of acres of property across the county, and would be a great partner for regional-scale water capture opportunities. However, LAUSD has long hesitated to partner on projects that accept runoff from offsite and has proposed only onsite mitigation projects on their property for Regional Program funding. Consequently, we recommend that the scoring be modified to allow points for projects located within, immediately adjacent, and near school property, especially those sited along Safe Routes to Schools. Safe Routes to Schools are streets prioritized for traffic and safety improvements for students traveling to and from school. Projects adjacent to school property in the public right-of-way (i.e., roads, sidewalks, medians, etc.) immediately adjacent to the perimeter of the school are worthy of consideration due to the overall benefits they provide to the students and staff at the school, as well as to neighboring communities. Schools, children, and communities can benefit from the greening, shade, traffic improvement, and stormwater capture benefits of greening areas adjacent to schools in public rights-of-way along the perimeter and in close proximity to the school. In addition, such projects may provide educational opportunities about nature-based solutions and environmental stewardship. We propose amending the Interim Guidance to allow greening adjacent to schools to be considered with a modified scoring methodology for the CIB. Scoring would allow for a maximum of 2 points for qualifying projects adjacent to school (wi	Amend scoring for NBS/CIB (schools specifically)	link
24	3/25/2022	Michael Scaduto, P.E., ENV. SP	LASAN	Disadvantaged Community Policies in the Regional Program	Given the importance of ensuring the SCWP provides benefits to disadvantaged communities, LASAN recommends the District develop new scoring criteria (i.e., 0-10 points) that benefit projects within disadvantaged communities or and/or projects that beneficially impact disadvantaged communities. Due to historic structural and infrastructural inequities, it can often be more difficult to implement projects in these areas. Additional points can alleviate this issue and further incentivize projects being located in disadvantaged communities, as intended by the program. Such criteria could reflect the options discussed on pages 45 - 46 of the Interim Guidance (refer to items 1 - 5), through which partial points could be achieved commensurate with the direct or indirect benefits to the disadvantaged community.	Amend scoring for DAC in scoring	<u>link</u>
25	3/25/2022	Michael Scaduto, P.E., ENV. SP	LASAN	Disadvantaged Community Policies in the Regional Program	The District has previously allowed only the total amount of funding awarded by the Regional Program towards a project be used when demonstrating the 110% investment return calculation (item 7 on Page 46 of the Interim Guidance). LASAN recommends the District explore options for crediting a proportion of the project cost as benefiting a disadvantaged community, especially for projects located outside of disadvantaged communities. Various examples and options for providing partial points and credit for projects benefiting disadvantaged communities were subject to thorough analysis by the Accelerate Resilience LA Safe Clean Water Working group, such as evaluating benefits based on population served by a project. Such options are presented in detail in the resulting Working Group Recommendation document, which we encourage the District to use as reference.	Amend calculation/basis for 110% investment return for DACs (refer to ARLA options)	<u>link</u>

Date	Ву	Affiliation	Section	Comment	Summary	PDF
5 3/25/2022	Michael Scaduto, P.E., ENV. SP	LASAN		LASAN is concerned by the interim guidance for Water Supply Scenario #3 – Projects claiming future water supply benefit due to future projects or infrastructure (Page 19), which states "Projects cannot receive water supply benefit points for water diverted to a downstream project that is not yet built and operational. The future project may receive water supply benefits from the water diverted to it." This guidance is too restrictive, breaks the precedent set in prior rounds, and would remove incentives for expanding water recycling in the region. For instance, due to limited opportunities the infiltrate in the Central and South Bay, many projects planned for this watershed seek to divert polluted urban runoff to the Hyperion Water Treatment Plant for treatment. These projects should be, and have previously been able receive points for water supply. The City is committed to upgrading the Hyperion Water Treatment Plant to 100% water recycling by 20353. LASAN encourages the District to and continue to allow projects like this to receive points in order to encourage integrated water resource management and water recycling expansion in the region. This would be consistent with the language in the Los Angeles Flood Control District Code Section 16.03.OO that defines a water supply benefit and the activities that provide that benefit, including but not limited to "reuse and conservation practices, diversion of Stormwater or Urban Runoff to a sanitary sewer system for direct or indirect water recycling, increased groundwater replenishment or available yield, or offset potable water use" (Referenced on Page 15 of the Interim Guidance).	project that will be built in the future (e.g., Hyperion WTP)	link
7 3/25/2022	Michael Scaduto, P.E., ENV. SP	LASAN	Water Supply Guidance	We also encourage the District to consider specifying additional activities that provide Water Supply Benefits, but which are not specifically called out in the existing feasibility study requirements or the Water Supply Interim Guidance. Specifically, LASAN recommends the SCWP recognize the following activities as being eligible for providing water supply benefits: seawater intrusion reduction/barriers, infiltration and percolation to basins not currently used for municipal purposes, and water for environmental benefits (flows needed for habitat function, increased biodiversity, etc.).	Consider additional activities not called out in feasibility study or guidance for Water Supply Benefits	link
3 3/25/2022	Michael Scaduto, P.E., ENV. SP	LASAN	Guidance	While this clarification is helpful and not as restrictive as the existing 2019 Feasibility Study Guidelines, which explicitly require the groundwater basin to concur that the infiltrated water is reaching a managed, useable groundwater aquifer, we believe more flexibility is needed. Since projects are submitted to the SCWP at the feasibility study stage, securing a letter of concurrence from the groundwater basin may not always be possible. LASAN experienced this first-hand on a recent project submitted to the Regional Infrastructure Program. In this case, the groundwater basin manager indicated they could not provide LASAN a letter of support because the project was located over a confined aquifer. Other projects sited over this basin will face a similar challenge.	Revise concurrence requirements for Infiltration Projects	link
3/25/2022	Michael Scaduto, P.E., ENV. SP	LASAN		As discussed on page 30, the existing Regional Project Application Module requires inputs regarding removing impermeable surfaces. However, the Module would benefit from clarifying the definition of the "site before construction" for the impermeable area percent calculation. The "site before construction" could be considered the capture area (watershed), rights-of-way area, or area affected by work (i.e., street or sidewalk within active work limits). While we understand how to estimate the amount of the impervious area removed (numerator), clarification is requested for the definition of the amount of impermeable area for the "site before construction" (denominator). We recommend the Interim Guidelines define "site" as the project work area. The numerator should be the impermeable area preconstruction (and calculated again after construction), and the denominator should be the actual work area (area transformed, excavated, modified). We further recommend that the Interim Guidance and the Project Module also include a simple example calculation.	Revise module and refine definition for the "site before construction" for NBS	link
3/25/2022	Michael Scaduto, P.E., ENV. SP	LASAN	Additional Guidance	Delineate requirements for Regional Infrastructure Program applications seeking funding for various phases of projects implementation, for instance, requirements for those seeking design funding only, both design and construction phase funding, or those seeking operations and maintenance funding only.	Additional guidance for funding for different phasing or projects	<u>link</u>
1 3/25/2022	Michael Scaduto, P.E., ENV. SP	LASAN		Clarify that the definition of "Increased access to waterways" includes improvements to access such as new or improved pedestrian and bicycle paths (page 27, row 9 of the Interim Guidance).	Clarify that the definition of "Increased access to waterways"	link
2 3/25/2022	Michael Scaduto, P.E., ENV. SP	LASAN		Give consideration to the challenges of planning nature-based solutions in the public right-of way, as there are more restrictions in the ability to remove impermeable surfaces in roadways than in parks.	Give consideration to the challenges of planning nature-based solutions in the public right-of way	link

#	Date	Ву	Affiliation	Section	Comment	Summary	PDF
33	3/26/2022		OWLA	Overall (ARLA)	We first want to express our support for and endorsement of the recommendations submitted by the ARLA SCWP Working Group (attachment A). We applaud the efforts of the Working Group (which included 3 members of the OWLA coalition) to find consensus between NGOs/CBOs and municipalities in developing recommendations and comments on the interim guidance. It is precisely because of the support from these diverse groups that we hope these recommendations will be given due consideration.	ARLA endorsement	<u>link</u>
34	3/26/2022		OWLA	Strengthening Community Engagement and Support	Add language to "additional best practices" to encourage respectful engagement with Tribes such as "Establish meaningful dialogue early in the project timeline with both federally recognized and non-federally recognized Tribes that are or may be affected by the proposed project in an early and ongoing process with a basis of mutual respect and recognition of consultation capacity and needs" (p 9-10)	Encourage respectful engagement with Tribes	link
35	3/26/2022		OWLA	Water Supply Guidance	Define what constitutes "good faith efforts" to establishing relationship to downstream projects (p 18, Scenario 1)	Define what constitutes "good faith efforts" to establishing relationship to downstream projects (p 18, Scenario 1)	<u>link</u>
36	3/26/2022		OWLA	Water Supply Guidance	Consider the ecological benefits of any water that may be lost in the infiltration and percolation process in addition to a "project's full calculated capacity to infiltrated wateras a benefit to locally available water supply" (p 19, Scenario 5)	Consider the ecological benefits of any water that may be lost in the infiltration and percolation process	<u>link</u>
37	3/26/2022		OWLA	Water Supply Guidance	Encourage WASC members to review the Scoring Committee's response and not just the original application as some claimed benefits may be rejected by that committee of experts (p 20, Tools and Strategies)	Encourage WASC members to review the Scoring Committee's response	<u>link</u>
38	3/26/2022		OWLA	Water Supply Guidance	Note that (until a more robust framework for 'DAC benefitting', such as has been proposed by the ARLA SCWP Working Group, is adopted), OWLA maintains that regional water supply does not equal disadvantaged community benefits in terms of the 110% return on investment (p 20, Long Term Vision bullet 4)	Regional water supply does not equal disadvantaged community benefits in terms of the 110% return on investment	link
39	3/26/2022		OWLA	Water Supply Guidance	Incorporate full cost accounting rather than life-cycle costs of projects (long term water supply).	Incorporate full cost accounting rather than life-cycle costs of projects (long term water supply).	link
40	3/26/2022		OWLA	Water Supply Guidance	Consider the input provided by the NSMB WASC regarding scoring (attachment B).	Consider the input provided by the NSMB WASC regarding scoring (Attachment B)	<u>link</u>
41	3/26/2022		OWLA	0 0	Note that OWLA does not believe that nature-based solutions and nature mimicking solutions should be conflated. They should have separate definitions and be separated in the program and the guidance as they do not utilize the same processes nor do they provide the same suite of benefits. (This recommendation is part of the ARLA SCWP Working Group recommendations but bears repeating)	Revise definition for NBS	<u>link</u>
42	3/26/2022		OWLA	Nature Based Solutions	Remove quotations around the word prioritize as it creates a misleading interpretation of the program goal to prioritize NBS "This guidance seeks to help project proponents and decision making bodies-"prioritize"-Nature Based Solutions" (p 22, Purpose)	Text edit	<u>link</u>
43	3/26/2022		OWLA	Programming of	Remove the word often from the sentence "It is important to note that Nature-Based solutions are inherently holistic approaches, and as a result, <del>often</del> provide multiple benefits" (p 24)	Text edit	<u>link</u>
44	3/26/2022		OWLA		Provide examples with data to back up the following generalized statement "It is important to acknowledge that some needs and desired outcomes the SCWP seeks to address cannot be met using natural processes or nature-mimicking strategies" or remove the statement (p 25)	Provide examples with data why some needs and desired outcomes the SCWP seeks to address cannot be met using natural processes or nature-mimicking strategies	<u>link</u>
45	3/26/2022		OWLA		Refine the statement "Importantly, habitat, green space, and usable open space or other natural processes or nature mimicking strategies that are independent of the stormwater improvement would not be eligible for points in this category. Excluded strategies may include, but are not limited to, ornamental landscaping, pocket parks, and shade trees" to make clear that restoring habitat, green space and/or usable open space can be a stormwater improvement. Correct excluded strategies to include strategies such as placing an infiltration gallery underneath existing open space, ornamental landscaping, etc. (p 29, implementing natural processes)	Make clear that restoring habitat, green space and/or usable open space can be a stormwater improvement. Revise excluded strategies	<u>link</u>
46	3/26/2022		OWLA		Consider using a sliding scale for the category "utilizing natural materials" to encourage the integration of soils and vegetation, with a preference for native vegetation in all projects (attachment C) (p 30, utilizing natural materials)	Consider using a sliding scale for the category "utilizing natural materials"	<u>link</u>

#	Date	Ву	Affiliation	Section	Comment	S
# 47	3/26/2022		OWLA	Programming of Nature Based Solutions	Have the County provide a summary to the WASC members rather than place the burden of work on the WASC members, especially community members who may not have the capacity "When programming the SIP, the WASC can review the SIP of previous years, and the suite of Projects proposed, to consider how Nature-Based Solutions are being prioritized in the Watershed Area" (p 33, Strategies during Project evaluation)	r
48	3/26/2022		OWLA	Programming of Nature Based Solutions	Note that OWLA supports the long-term vision item of "integration across WHAM" (p 35, Long Term Vision)	S \
49	3/26/2022		OWLA	Implementing Disadvantaged Community Policies in the Regional Program	<ul> <li>community should strongly rely on documented public support by members of that community or their elected representatives" (p 46, Interpreting)</li> <li>Pursue near-term opportunities to improve accessibility of both virtual and in-person SCWP governance committee meetings particularly for disadvantaged communities (e.g., language interpretation, public recordings given public testimonies are included as potential indicators of community support "Public testimony offered during public meetings that express how a Project will, or will not, provide benefits to a community can be part of the decision-making process of the WASC as the question of "direct benefit" is settled" (p 50, Community Support)</li> <li>Many of the projects that municipalities are submitting for funding consideration are major projects that have been planned, designed, and engineered over many years and included and approved by the Los Angeles</li> </ul>	
50	3/26/2022		OWLA	Disadvantaged Community Policies in the Regional Program	committee meetings particularly for disadvantaged communities (e.g., language interpretation, public recordings given public testimonies are included as potential indicators of community support "Public testimony offered during public meetings that express how a Project will, or will not, provide benefits to a community can be part of the decision-making process of the WASC as the question of "direct benefit" is settled" (p 50, Community	K
51	3/27/2022	Marisa Creter, Executive Director	SGVCOG		have been planned, designed, and engineered over many years and included and approved by the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board (Regional Board) in Watershed Management Plans in Watershed	с I
52	3/27/2022	Marisa Creter, Executive Director	SGVCOG	Water Supply Guidance	The Interim Guidance acknowledges that it is difficult to quantify the value of water it would take to reach a managed, usable, groundwater as locally available water for infiltration projects. As an alternative, the Guidance recommends "written concurrence from the agency managing the groundwater basin that the project is believed to increase local groundwater supplies." While this recommendation is simple in nature, it is nearly impossible in practice. Due to the complicated nature of water rights, based on previous conversations with the San Gabriel Watermaster, there is not a scenario in the watersheds of the San Gabriel and Rio Hondo rivers in which a stormwater project would be considered to increase the local water supply. Thus, it is important to have another alternative by which an infiltration project could demonstrate its water supply benefits.	V C C
53	3/27/2022	Marisa Creter, Executive Director	SGVCOG	Water Supply Guidance	In addition, the Interim Guidance acknowledges that projects within a Watershed Area are competing against each other – rather than with those in other watershed areas – so the impact of a watershed area having less water supply benefit opportunity is partially mitigated. However, as noted, by the Interim Guidance as plans for the long-term vision for Water Supply Guidance, the County must also be sure that the Water Supply Benefits criteria do not prevent viable projects from reaching the minimum scoring threshold for funding consideration. It is important to consider this key component as soon as possible.	/ C r s
55	3/25/2022	Shona Ganguly Associate Director	TNC	Strengthening Community Engagement and Support	TNC strongly agrees that stakeholder input should be actively solicited, addressed, and incorporated early and often in the project development process, including the planning and design phases.	C
56	3/25/2022	Shona Ganguly Associate Director	TNC	Support Strengthening Community Engagement and Support	On page 3, the interim guidance states that it is not required to demonstrate strong local, community support or to show that the project has been developed in partnership with a local NGO. It should be required that every project have strong community support and the associated scoring points should be required to advance/fund a project.	F

Summary	PDF
Have the County provide a summary to the WASC members rather than place the burden of work on the WASC members	<u>link</u>
Supports the long-term vision item of "integration across WHAM"	link
Change the language to ensure that project proponents engage in direct community engagement and do not solely rely on engaging with elected officials	<u>link</u>
Pursue near-term opportunities to improve accessibility of both virtual and in-person SCWP governance committee meetings particularly for disadvantaged communities given public testimonies are included as potential indicators of community support	<u>link</u>
Major infrastructure projects working towards compliance with the MS4 Permit should not be at a disadvantage in the consideration of community engagement points in the scoring	<u>link</u>
Watersheds of the San Gabriel and Rio Hondo rivers are not considered to increase the local water supply. District should provide another alternative by which an infiltration project could demonstrate its water supply benefits	<u>link</u>
Although projects are only competing against each other, District should to ensure Water Supply Benefits criteria do not prevent viable projects from reaching the minimum scoring threshold for funding consideration	<u>link</u>
Concurrence with guidance language cited in the comment	<u>link</u>
Require strong community support to advance/fund a project	<u>link</u>

#	Date	Ву	Affiliation	Section	Comment	Summary	PDF
57	3/25/2022	Shona Ganguly Associate Director	TNC	Community	As stated on page 4, comprehensive stakeholder and community outreach/engagement plans for infrastructure program projects are necessary to ensure that communities have the opportunity to provide feedback on projects in their neighborhoods, support the process to completion, and steward the project afterward.	Concurrence with guidance language cited in the comment	<u>link</u>
58	3/25/2022	Shona Ganguly Associate Director	TNC	Strengthening Community Engagement and Support	It is essential to utilize a variety of outreach platforms and techniques to reach residents, including online media, local media, and grassroots as outlined on page 5. Table 1 does not have a required second activity for projects under \$2 million, but with the preponderance of outreach tools and ways to connect with residents and communities, it is relatively simple for project proponents to ensure that they have a minimum of two touch points with community members (even if via webinar or social media).	Require second outreach activity for projects under \$2M	<u>link</u>
59	3/25/2022	Shona Ganguly Associate Director	TNC	Community Engagement and Support	On page 6, "active education about Project benefits" during the design phase (and each phase of the process) helps community members to understand what will be done in their neighborhoods and why they would want to support it and other projects like it as well as how the program functions. If community members have concerns or feedback as they learn about a project's benefits in the planning and design phases, project proponents are able to proactively address those concerns early on. When community members see project proponents transparently address their concerns, community trust grows and it is more likely that community members will have a consistent, vested interest beyond the project's completion. TNC commends the Safe Clean Water Program for including the "Good, Better, Best" chart on pages 8 and 9 that outline best practices to encourage robust community engagement.	Concurrence with "good, better, best" table	<u>link</u>
60	3/25/2022	Shona Ganguly Associate Director	TNC	Water Supply Guidance	Stormwater that is treated and infiltrated or captured should be considered a water supply benefit as the interim guidance states.	Concurrence with guidance language cited in the comment	<u>link</u>
61	3/25/2022	Shona Ganguly Associate Director	TNC	Water Supply Guidance	TNC recommends that the interim guidance be amended to state that activities which result in Water Supply Benefits in the SCWP include directing or diverting water to soils or shallow groundwater where they sustain or augment the needs of the native plants and animals in inland and freshwater ecosystems.	Include environmental water as a water supply benefit	<u>link</u>
62	3/25/2022	Shona Ganguly Associate Director	TNC	Nature Based Solutions	TNC continues to strongly suggest that the definition of Nature-Based Solutions (NBS) be separated from nature mimicking processes as defined on page 23. Further, vegetated NBS should be prioritized as they provide the most co-benefits, most notably for climate resilience and communities.	Separate definitions are needed to further differentiate Nature- Based Solutions from Nature-Mimicking Solutions and vegetated NBS should be prioritized	<u>link</u>
63	3/25/2022	Shona Ganguly Associate Director	TNC	• •	TNC appreciates that the Guidance includes strategies to help WASCs assess projects for NBS and to ensure they are prioritized. However, stronger tools are needed to assist in this process.	Stronger tools to help WASCs assess projects for NBS	link
64	3/25/2022	Shona Ganguly Associate Director	TNC		The chart on page 24 is useful to illustrate the different types of NBS that can be used to meet various needs or desired outcomes and how they can provide multiple benefits.	Concurrence with guidance language cited in the comment	<u>link</u>
65	3/25/2022	Shona Ganguly Associate Director	TNC		TNC supports project proponents and evaluators asking whether natural processes can be used to address watershed needs and deliver SCWP benefits on page 25.	Concurrence with guidance language cited in the comment	<u>link</u>
66	3/25/2022	Shona Ganguly Associate Director	TNC		It is crucial to acknowledge and understand the link between watershed and community needs referenced on page 26 as often Nature-Based Solutions provide community benefits.	Concurrence with guidance language cited in the comment	<u>link</u>
67	3/25/2022	Shona Ganguly Associate Director	TNC	Nature Based Solutions	Resources for native and climate-appropriate vegetation on page 30 should be referenced by all project proponents to ensure that diverse plant palettes are included in the project application/plan. This will promote a diversity of species on each site.	Resources for native and climate-appropriate vegetation should be referenced by all project proponents	<u>link</u>
68	3/25/2022	Shona Ganguly Associate Director	TNC	Programming of	It would be helpful to have more specificity and detail in the applications about which type of NBS will be used, which plants have been chosen, and if they are not native or climate-appropriate, why those plants were chosen instead.	More specificity and detail in the applications about NBS	<u>link</u>
69	3/25/2022	Shona Ganguly Associate Director	TNC			There should be net positive vegetation/plants/trees to receive NBS points	<u>link</u>

Date	Ву	Affiliation	Section	Comment	Summary	PDF
3/25/2022	Shona Ganguly Associate Director	TNC	Programming of Nature Based Solutions	TNC commends the Safe Clean Water Program for including the "Good, Better, Best" charts and clarifying notes from page 37 to 42 that outline best practices for climate-appropriate and native vegetation, permeability, protection of undeveloped mountains and floodplains, creation and restoration of riparian habitat and wetlands, new landscape elements, and healthy soil. However, "eco-friendly" is a confusing term on page 37 for vegetation. Climate-appropriate or native should be sufficient descriptors, so we recommend removing "eco-friendly." Also, the description of creating open space that includes preservation of native vegetation and creation of open green space using climate-appropriate and native vegetation on page 39 should be reflected in the "Best" box. In particular, it should be clear for project proponents and the committees that native vegetation qualifies as a best practice for NBS across the board.		link
71 3/25/2022	Shona Ganguly Associate Director	TNC		Delivering direct DAC benefits within low-income neighborhoods that have faced historic and ongoing disinvestments is essential. Currently, there is no clear guidance regarding how to assess "direct benefits." Using a sphere of influence for different project types could be a more effective way to ascertain whether benefits are accruing to DACs. This deserves more study and investigation and TNC hopes that the Metrics and Monitoring Study will do a deeper dive into this topic.	Use sphere of influence for evaluating DAC benefits	link
72 3/25/2022	Shona Ganguly Associate Director	TNC	Implementing Disadvantaged Community Policies in the Regional Program	Addressing poor water quality, urban heat, air quality, lack of park and open space access, safe recreation, and community voices in project processes should be considered in this section. Vegetated NBS should be prioritized as they provide the most direct benefits for DACs, such as improving public health, water, air, and access to nature.	Addressing poor water quality, urban heat, air quality, lack of park and open space access, safe recreation, and community voices in project processes should be considered in this section. Vegetated NBS should be prioritized.	<u>link</u>
73 3/25/2022	Shona Ganguly Associate Director	TNC	Overall (ARLA)	TNC supports and endorses the recommendations submitted by the Accelerate Resilience LA (ARLA) SCWP Working Group and the OurWaterLA Coalition	ARLA endorsement	<u>link</u>
74 3/25/2022		WHAM Coalition	Strengthening Community Engagement and Support	Scoring criteria should reflect in a more meaningful way the importance of community engagement and project prioritization. Currently, there are very few points for engagement and the points aren't related to a clear demonstration of engagement	Scoring criteria to reflect importance of community engagement and project prioritization	link
75 3/25/2022		WHAM Coalition	Strengthening Community Engagement and Support	The engagement level chart is vague and makes it hard for applicants to understand the types of engagement that is expected of them. It also makes it hard to review and assign points for engagement. The "good" category fails to identify what the inform and consult activities look like (same for the other categories). It leaves a lot of room for interpretation by the applicants and reviewers. For instance, one of the examples in the table is "transparent responses to community comments". This should be an overall principle for all engagement that occurs regardless of the type of engagement activity. Also, what about translation, childcare, food along with selecting a convenient meeting time, etc. Please provide more specifics to make requirements clearer for both the scoring committee, project applications, and evaluators.	More specifics to make "good, better, best" table for engagement requirements clearer for scoring committee, project applications, and evaluators	<u>link</u>
76 3/25/2022		WHAM Coalition	Strengthening Community Engagement and Support	Finally, an overarching concern about the accessibility of the program/equity focus is the fact that millions of dollars have already been committed and the engagement criteria are just getting defined which makes the engagement feel like an afterthought. We hope that future interim guidance will provide specific focus on proactive equity and engagement, perhaps based on the forthcoming UCLA and district studies mentioned.	Future interim guidance should provide specific focus on proactive equity and engagement	link
77 3/25/2022		WHAM Coalition	Strengthening Community Engagement and Support	We support making community engagement a requirement of the SCWP application. If an applicant does not complete any community engagement, their application should be considered incomplete and should not be eligible for scoring. This would ensure that all projects conduct some minimum level of community engagement to qualify for SCWP funds.	Minimum level of community engagement to qualify for SCWP funds	<u>link</u>
78 3/25/2022		WHAM Coalition	Strengthening Community Engagement and Support	The guidance language only "encourages" applicants to seek input from the Watershed Coordinator. Please describe why working with the watershed coordinator is not required and how applicants who do get input from the watershed coordinator will be scored or evaluated differently from those who do not.	Describe why working with the watershed coordinator is not required and how applicants who do get input from the watershed coordinator will be scored or evaluated differently from those who do not	<u>link</u>
79 3/25/2022		WHAM Coalition	Strengthening Community Engagement and Support	For the examples box please include, at minimum, the dollar amount budget for the Urban Orchard project to help applicants understand the scale of the project. Please provide additional information for this example describing how the project went through the scoring criteria (or proposed changes). Please include the scoring as an appendix or link directly in the document if it is already publicly available. (pg 7)	Provide additional information for Urban Orchard Project example	link
80 3/25/2022		WHAM Coalition	Strengthening Community Engagement and Support	There is a discussion of volunteerism and workforce development in a single sentence. Please separate these two concepts and provide specific guidance on how these would be scored.	Separate discussion of volunteerism and workforce development and provide guidance on how these would be scored	<u>link</u>

#	Date	Ву	Affiliation	Section	Comment	Summary	PDF
81	3/25/2022		WHAM Coalition	Community Engagement and Support	We applaud the inclusion of Table 2. Best practices for conducting outreach and engagement in the document. However, there is still ambiguity regarding when each of the three categories would be required and what associated points would be awarded for each. See the ISI/Envision LD1.3 information included in this guidance (p.12) for an example of clear and effective ways to communicate requirements and associated points for community engagement across a spectrum.	Still ambiguity regarding when each of the "good, better best" engagement categories would be required and associated points awarded for each	<u>link</u>
82	3/25/2022		WHAM Coalition	Community	We request that outreach budgets from previously awarded projects be made publicly available to inform new applicants of what was previously approved. We also request that these documents be provided in a standalone and easy to find location to reduce burdens on applicants looking for these documents.	Outreach budgets should be publicly available as a standalone document to inform new applicants	<u>link</u>
83	3/25/2022		WHAM Coalition	Nature Based Solutions	Integration Across WHAM: Establish processes to collaborate early with other funding programs to evaluate opportunities and maximize Nature-Based Solutions that may achieve multi-sector benefits in addition to SCWP objectives.	Establish processes to collaborate early with other funding programs to evaluate opportunities and maximize NBS	link